    THE SHARED HERITAGE TRAIL OF CAVENDISH, HOLYBROOK, 

     ST. LUKES, FAGLEY AND WELLINGTON PRIMARY SCHOOLS;

     ST.CLARE’S, AND OUR LADY OF ST. BRENDAN’S CATHOLIC

       PRIMARY SCHOOLS, AND RAVENSCLIFFE DAY CENTRE.
This Heritage Trail can be joined at any point, as it is a circular route. However, for the purposes of this book, we are starting by the mounting block on Harrogate Road – a point equidistant from Our Lady of St. Brendan’s and Holybrook schools, and between the junctions of Bank and Park Road.
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Whether this particular mounting block is in situ or not, what we can be sure of is that many such blocks would have been employed on the Bradford to Harrogate Road. There has been a track here since ancient times, recorded too when the Romans were here (they may have used it), whereupon it eventually became a turnpike road, allowing traffic such as stagecoaches to use it. The heavy block of stone steps allowed a person to climb, and enter a carriage or coach in a dignified way; it also allowed for females to mount a horse with dignity too – hence the word “mounting”. Mostly, such blocks were situated at the entrance to hostels and inns where travellers spent the night. Though no longer in use, mounting blocks are still very much a part of roadside furniture – there are five such blocks in nearby Skipton alone!
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From here begin a steady walk up Harrogate Road, in the direction of Eccleshill. This brings one to the junction of Harrogate Road and Ravenscliffe Road. Taking care to cross Ravenscliffe Road, stop briefly to look at the houses opposite. Somewhere in there – perhaps in someone’s back-garden - lies an ancient “Holy Well”. We know it is there because it appears on ancient maps, but also, when the railway was built, the map showed the well to be between it, and Harrogate Road. A record exists for the well as far back as 1565, when it was named “Holliwell”. In her book “Historic Wells Around Bradford”, historian Val Shepherd refers to a number of holy wells in the Bradford area. Today, most of these have disappeared, or have been swallowed up as housing has expanded, or simply just grown over with vegetation. Though we cannot see our very own holy well, our friends at Greengates and Parkland schools are very lucky in that they have on their Heritage Trail a holy well which is still in situ, with everything intact, though a little dilapidated. We reproduce a picture of it here. Might our well have looked like this?[image: image3.jpg]
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Is it possible we could find the well if we did a bit of detective work? The answer is surely yes, since it is recorded in “Memories of Eccleshill” (1989) by the Eccleshill Local History Group that: “...on one of our saunters we walked along Harrogate Road to a point opposite Ravenscliffe Avenue, where water was running down from the site of the Holy Well on to the pavement.”Is there water running down today? If so, you might want to take a sip to cure your aching feet!
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Leaving our Holy Well, continue the steady climb along Harrogate Road, finding a safe place to cross in order to join Stott Terrace. The beginning of the terrace is very steep, but luckily we are only climbing a few yards to Hutton Terrace, which is on the right, and which we enter and walk along. It was on this unassuming street that a very famous person was born. That’s right, David Hockney – the world-famous artist – was born here in Hutton Terrace, Eccleshill, on 9th of July, 1937. It was noted that he was gifted from a very early age, when he began drawing cartoons at Sunday school (we will return to this aspect of his life later on the trail). As a young man, David attended the Bradford School of Art, where he would work on his drawings for ten to twelve hours a day. His flair for draughtsmanship marked him out as exceptional, and he was soon attending the Royal College of Art in London. Soon he became a lecturer, first at Maidstone College, then leaving our shores for the USA and universities of Iowa, Colorado, California, Los Angeles and Berkeley. Hockney’s paintings embrace a wide range of subjects and as a stage designer he has been outstanding. His drawings as a draughtsman are amazing, while his portraits can be exceptionally moving. David’s work is featured in major galleries all around [image: image6.jpg]


the world, including the Tate in London, The National Gallery of Australia and the Museum of Modern Art in New York. Mr. Hockney has always remembered his Bradford roots, and has used Salt’s Mill at Saltaire as his personal gallery. There, one can see many of his works, plus his masterpiece for stage: A Rake’s Progress.
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Turning left into Hall Road (which was the old road to the railway station), begin the slow, steady climb to the top, passing Cavendish School on the right. Nothing much to see here, but wait just one moment; what if we told you that one of the most photographed women of all time was born here in 1875? Would you believe us? Well, you had better, because the lady did exist, and her name was Marie Studholme, and she was the most famous actress of her day, appearing on stage in the 1890s and 1900s. She was what they called then a “Postcard beauty” (a sort of Victorian pin-up girl) and was said to be the most extensively photographed woman on stage in the country, from which she made a fortune. But there was much more to Mary Studholme than a few million postcards. She made her own way to London, staying there with family friends, and at the tender age of 17 she took to the stage at the Criterion Theatre, under the guidance of impresario, Charles Wyndham. In 1897 she sailed to the United States, her fame growing. She toured the States and the United Kingdom for the next 20 years, beguiling everyone with her “charming” – rather than striking – stage presence. Though she did not have children of her own, she was said to love them, and adopted two when she secretly married Giles Borrett, a member of the chorus. Marie Studholme died in London in 1930, just 55 years of age, and still as strikingly beautiful as she had been in her youth.
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Well, we have already had two famous people on our trail. Are there any more? You Bet! Eccleshill has produced many, and at the top of Hall Road, turn right into Victoria Road, and to where, on the right, is the former Hutton School, Alma Mater for two contemporary and extremely well-known actors of today! Before we go into their lives, take a moment to notice the remains of what seem to be stone gateposts built into the wall flanking the school. These remnants are all that is left of Eccleshill Hall, built in 1713 by the Stanhope family, and demolished in 1878. In all, the estate was some 500 acres in size, and the hall was said to be a ‘good house, wisely planned and not badly situated.’ No photographs exist but there is a sampler in Bolling Hall of the house. Eccleshill Hall house eventually passed into the possession of the Stott family (hence Stott Terrace close by).
[image: image11.jpg]


[image: image12.jpg]


TV actress Stephanie Turner was born in Eccleshill in 1944, of a long-established Eccleshill Family, and where, at age three, she attended Hutton School. However, the family moved away three years later to another part of Bradford, and her connection with Eccleshill ended at that point. Stephanie is best remembered for her role as Inspector Jean Darblay in Juliet Bravo. For this she won the Variety Club of Great Britain award for BBC Personality of the Year! Her countless television appearances include Coronation Street, Z Cars, A Touch of Frost, Life with the Braithwaites, Emmerdale, Boon, The Bill and Casualty. She has also appeared in many acclaimed stage productions such as A Streetcar Named Desire, Rose, Hapgood and Say goodnight to Grandma.
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Also attending Hutton School was another famous TV actor, Peter Firth, and we are going to make an about turn and hot foot it down Victoria Road to Chapel Street, and to where his story awaits! Peter was born in Chapel Street, Eccleshill on 27th October 1953, and as a child went to Hutton Primary School. His rise to fame was swift, having completed his education at Hanson Boys Grammer School, when, aged 14, he attended classes at the Bradford Civic Theatre. He was quickly noticed and signed up by Yorkshire TV for The Flaxton Boys (1971/2). In 1973 – and just 20 years-old, Peter created his acclaimed stage role in Equus. For this he received a Golden Globe Award for Best Supporting Actor; an Acadamy Award (Oscar!) nomination; a Tony Award nomination; and The Theatre World Award, and the Plays and Players Award for Best Young Actor. Peter did not let the grass grew under his feet: he went on to star in the major 1976 film Aces High, plus Joseph Andrews (1977), When You Coming Back, Red Ryder? (1979), and Tess (1979). Many more films followed, including Letter to Brezhnev, The Hunt for Red October, Shadowlands, An Awfully Big Adventure, Chill Factor, Pearl Harbour and West Virginia. Peter has been a long-standing cast member of TV’s Heartbeat. He is loved and admired by an army of fans throughout the world who believe he belongs to them, but really, he belongs to us!
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Chapel Street was originally known as “t’Dobby Raw” after ‘Dobbies’ which were, according to William Cudworth, early worsted manufactured goods made in this area of Eccleshill. He also tells us to look for a house at the top of the street marked “T.T. 1819” which were the initials of the owner of all the houses in the street, a Thomas Thornton, who had made his money from “dobby” making. Numbers 3 – 11 was also the site of the first school (demolished in mid 1800s) and the original meeting place of the members of the Mechanics Institute. The name of Chapel Street dates from 1823, when the Independent Chapel was erected. Also known as the Salem Chapel, it was built to house members who had previously worshipped at Prospect Chapel at Bank Top. The little chapel cemetery – now much overgrown – is a must to visit, since among its residents are – wait for it - many teachers from the area, the most famous being Mr. Thomas Whitehead, who was the headmaster of Wellington School, and described as “one of the makers of Eccleshill.” Mr. Whitehead had white hair and a beard, and apparently wore a “Dr. Who” scarf! He died in 1945, aged 80 years. If you look carefully at the gravestones, you will see the names of many teachers inscribed on them. 
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Return to Victoria Road, turn left and approach the roundabout at the top, where we use the traffic island to arrive at St. Luke’s (Eccleshill) Church, and entering the grounds to take a peek at some of the interesting headstones, and hopefully, finding the church open. If not, we can study the building from the outside, admiring the strange, and somewhat stunted tower, which replaced the original spire and tower when they became dangerous in the 1950/60s. The original church – complete with its spire and tower - was built in the Perpendicular Gothic style of the 14th century, at a cost of £2650 – a sizeable sum at that time. The church opened in 1848, the land being given by a “Miss Jowett”, and with a grant of £1000 from the Commissioners for Building Churches. In 1861, all the seats in the church became free, after Eccleshill had been formed into an ecclesiastical parish three years earlier. 
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Continuing the trail, join Fagley Lane, which leads beside the church and past the parsonage (built in 1851) and St. Luke’s Primary School, opened in 1873. This was not the first church school: in 1843 the Vicar of Bradford, Dr. William Scoresby, founded Eccleshill Church School (this was before the actual church [image: image21.jpg]


was built). The original school consisted of one large room with a gallery. Later a smaller classroom would be added, and in 1873, a larger classroom was built, and St. Luke’s became a bone-fide school. Over the years more changes were made until it became the school we see today. The school logbook shows that children who went to the school had a great time there: ‘July 21st 1924. 5 children taken to the Wembley Exhibition for four days’ There were many more visits to such places as the Princes Theatre to see “As You Like It”; to a concert by the Bradford Permanent Orchestra; to the “Wireless Exhibition”; to the Photographic Exhibition at Cartwright Hall; and to Pinewood Holiday Home, near Oakworth, Keighley!
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Continuing along the trail, walk along Fagley Lane, then turn left into Green Lane. Here follow the pathway that leads round to the right, on the outer rim of the housing estate. Shortly the route brings one to the site of the old Shipley, Idle, Eccleshill and Laisterdyke railway line, now a footpath. The line was opened in 1872 and was a branch of the Great Northern Railway.
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Soon the trail reaches Fagley Lane, where there is a choice: one can turn right, and walk up through the housing estate, passing the schools of Fagley Primary and St. Clare’s R.C. Primary, and, if the Roman Catholic Church is open, then a visit to this beautiful church is well worth including. If, however, you want to know a rather peculiar story, one can turn left, and walk down the hill to the Blue Pig public house, which nestles on the borderline of Bradford and Leeds. 
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Before you decide, take a minute to look at the memorial stone that stands at the end of the line, and was set there to honour a man much beloved by Fagley people. His name was Bert Beaumont. They say that everyone in Fagley new Bert. He was a man who loved his football and who, in 1996, along with his friend David Fletcher, formed Fagley F.C. Later, a junior football team was also formed, giving the children of Fagley something to focus on. Due to Bert’s tireless efforts in supporting the teams in every way, and also his community work in general, a local competition was set up called the Bert Beaumont Invitation Trophy. Sadly, Bert died in 2000, and over 300 people attended his funeral – a real testament to his standing in the community. The Bert Beaumont Memorial Trophy is still played for today, with all proceeds going to Children In Need.
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And now for the Blue Pig! There has been a pub of some sort here for many years, and in the old days was known as a “whistling shop”, where spirits were sold out of hours. The illegal buying and selling was carried out from a small window poised over Fagley Brook, and because one could never tell whether one was in Fagley or Calverley when the money changed hands, the police had a hard time trying to arrest anyone! The name of The Blue Pig apparently comes from a landlord whose hobby, it was said, was keeping blue/grey pigs out the back. Another claim is that a local farmer once played a joke on the regulars by arriving at the pub with a blue pig under his arm, claiming it had just been born on the farm. Everyone was taken in until someone spotted the ‘blue’ was wet – it was paint!
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Retracing one’s steps back to Fagley Lane, continue to the very top where awaits, on the right, the grounds of St. Clare’s R.C. Church. Almost immediately, we find ourselves with a mystery to solve: did you know that once there stood on this site an old tower which became a notable landmark? What was this tower? Who built it? What did it look like? And why was it built?  The story is as follows: In 1828 a local wool dealer – a Mr. Benjamin Farrer – having been left a lot of money by a family called Jobson, decided he wanted to build a memorial to them as an acknowledgement for their generosity towards him and his family. In “Round About Bradford” (circa 1880) local historian, William Cudworth wrote: “It is an octagonal tower, or observatory, two storeys high, which bears the inscription: ‘Not for any merit. Pure, sincere love and esteem caused this tower to be erected to perpetuate to endless ages the memory of Susan, Joseph, John, and Samuel Jobson, upright, honest persons...’ The edifice soon became known locally as the ‘spy’ tower, as children could look down on courting couples who used the grounds for romantic trysts. For a time the tower was thought to be haunted when white figures were seen billowing within, but this proved to be young lads dressed up in sheets in order to scare off the couples. It must have been a remarkable building to see, until it fell into disrepair and when on one stormy night it was said to have been blown down. A more likely ending was that it was demolished in 1925 after being condemned as dangerous. We have looked, but can find no trace of the tower today.
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Turning the corner, and walking along Moorside Road, one comes quickly, on the right, to a quaint little nest of buildings called Ashfield Place. Here, on a cottage wall is the date 1747, marking out the row of cottages as being amongst the oldest in the area; but we are here to honour the memory of a remarkable man: Private Eric Anderson, a recipient of the Victoria Cross, in the Second World War. 
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Here is his story: Eric was born on 15th September 1915 at Ashfield Place. He went to Thornbury Boys School, and on Sundays sang in the choir at Eccleshill Parish Church. When war was declared in 1939 Eric joined up and went off to fight in the Middle East. Come 1943, and Pte. Anderson, now 27 years old, was a stretcher bearer with ‘A’ Company, 5th Battalion East Yorkshire Regiment. He was thrown into the thick of several ferocious battles in Tunisia, and it was while fighting at Wadi Akarit that Eric won the Victoria Cross, when, on four occasions, he ventured into no-man’s-land to rescue wounded comrades. With the fighting at its most fierce, Eric had gone out that fourth time, and when, trying to save his comrades, he was shot and killed. His comrades said that when he went he was: “the only moving target left to shoot at... defying intense machine-gun and mortar fire.” Recording the posthumous award of the Victoria Cross, the London Gazette of 29th July, 1943, wrote: “By his valour, complete disregard for his personal safety and courage under fire, he probably saved the lives of three of his comrades, and his example was an inspiration to all who witnessed his gallant act.”  Pte. Anderson’s grave, with the VC engraved upon its headstone, is in the War Cemetery at Sfax in Southern Tunisia. He was the only Bradford man in the Second World War to receive the Victoria Cross.
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Continuing along Moorside Road, one soon approaches, on the right, the Bradford Industrial Museum & Horses at Work. Rather than try to describe this amazing place, it is better to quote from the museum’s literature: ‘The site of a former mill complete with Mill Managers House with Victorian Decor and a terrace of back to back houses show how mill workers lived at different times in History. Inside the Mill itself are displays of textile machinery, steam power, engineering, printing and motor vehicles, along with an exciting temporary exhibitions programme. Bradford’s working horses also live at Bradford Industrial Museum and the Horse Emporium displays show how important horses were to industry.’ – A ‘must’ stop on the trail! Having explored the museum, it is time to move on to our next port of call which is the group of houses known as Haigh Fold, further along Moorside Road. A ‘fold’ was a name given to houses that had sprung up around an ancient farmstead. Folds existed long before the villages that grew up around them. Here we have a lovely group of houses, some dating back several hundred years. One looks to have at some time borne a decorative cartouche, now gone, which probably dated the house, and said who built it.              
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From Haigh Fold cross Moorside Road and enter Delverne Grove. Here, on the right, a snicket takes one to Silwood Drive. Turn left, and walk up Harrogate Road to the pelican crossing. Negotiating Leeds Road (be VERY careful when crossing), enter Wellington Road, and continue along until arriving at Dudley Hill Road. Here turn right. A few yards along, on the right, is Wellington Road Primary School, which has at least two famous ‘old boys’! One is David Hockney (see earlier inclusion) and the second is actor Duncan Preston.
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Duncan Preston was born in 1946 at 120 Pullan Avenue, Eccleshill. Acting was in Duncan’s blood, for soon after beginning working life he joined drama classes at the Bradford Playhouse, winning many plaudits for his acting abilities. In 1967 he won a place at RADA in London, where he graduated with honours, having won two of the Academy’s top awards. His list of TV and theatre credits is impressive indeed: Dinnerladies, Surgical Spirit, All Day Breakfast, Sketch Show Story, Harry Enfield and Chums, The Professionals, All Creatures Great and Small, Bergerac, Heartbeat, Romeo and Juliet, A Midsummer Night’s Dream – (the list is too long to reproduce here!) His film credits include Robin Hood, A Passage to India, Macbeth and Porridge. Duncan returns to Bradford frequently as he is a keen supporter of Rugby’s world champions, the Bradford Bulls.
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Continuing the trail, Dudley Hill Road soon gives way to Undercliffe Road, passing on the left the Milners Arms public house, and streets filled with memories of the 1800s. Further along is an old chapel with its cornerstone laid by a one-time mayor of Bradford. Opposite here, turn right into Airedale Terrace, where one enters a small enclave of backstreets, all tightly packed together. Arriving at Leeds Road turn left and then left again into Bromet Place.  Carved on one of the stones near the doorway of 12, Bromet Place is the name ‘Helm Nook’. Nothing special about this you may ask, but you’d be wrong! This was once the home of John Willie Hutchinson, a local librarian and well known character around the Eccleshill area. He wouldn’t let you in the library if your hands were dirty, nor would he allow you to take out any book he thought ‘unsuitable’! He was also a lay preacher, deacon, and superintendant at his local Congregational chapel. Mr. Hutchinson also wrote a number of books; he was an expert on textile machinery, both ancient and modern, and many said the books were the best they ever read. Among his titles were “Modern Looms” (1937) and “The Practical Management of Looms and Yarns” (1949). One thing few new about: he was a prolific hymn writer, as the Congregational Church’s Centenary book for 1923 states: ‘Sunday by Sunday for the past two years, Mr. J W Hutchinson has composed a hymn for our school... Up to the present he has written over 100 hymns.’  But back to that name: Helm Nook. Where did it come from? Well, John Willie had five children: Harold, Elsie, Lucy, Mary and Norman. He used their initials for ‘Helm’ and just added ‘ook’ to the ‘n’!
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As one approaches the junction of Undercliffe Road and Pullan Avenue, one can just see peeping through Eccles Court (on the right) the old Manor House. This was the home of Lord of the Manor, Jeremiah Rawson. He established the Manor Pottery in 1837, which for a time became famous for its “stonewares”. Among the bricks, chimney pots and sanitary ware, the pottery churned out money boxes, puzzle jugs, pairs of boots and tobacco jars. Later would come the celebrated “Eccleshill Jug” – an impressively decorated two-foot high job, now on view at Cliffe Castle, Keighley. Before moving on, if you look around you may notice that many of the houses here are made of bricks supposedly from the pottery. One more thing: be careful where you are standing – underfoot is a tunnel once used by wagons running between the pottery and the quarry on the Bolton Junction side!
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Taking care to Cross Pullan Avenue, turn into Moorside Road, and walk up until the “rec” is reached (recreation ground) on the right. Here one finds a row of three-storey weavers’ cottages called Moorwell Place. They were named after Moor Well, which rises close to this spot. They were built between 1851 and 1854 for families of weavers – the top floor rooms were where the hand-looms stood. Historian William Cudworth noted in his book “Round About Bradford” that: ‘Along the bottom of the Recreation Ground there is a sombre row of clothiers’ houses ... in the third storey windows loom-tackling is frequently visible, and here and there a broad-backed man, or woman of scarcely less proportions, may be seen at work, but the clatter and thud of the hand-loom are fast being transferred to the woollen mills.’ It is said that doors in the walls connect all the upper floors of the houses, allowing one to walk from one end of the terrace to the other!
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Before continuing along Moorside Road, look ahead. Can you see the very faint outline of an advertisement on a gable end? It advertises “Smith’s Garage”. Walking up Moorside Road, on the right is Tunwell Lane. Enter and walk down to the snicket. Here at the end, turn right and arrive, on the right, at the original Eccleshill Quaker House, built in 1747, by James and Rachel Kitson. Though it is difficult to read from the garden gate, just above the doorway is a cartouche which bears the inscription: ‘Built by James and Rachel Kitson’. Above this there was once another inscription, though lost now to the ravages of time. However, we found the inscription copied into William Cudworth’s book “Round About Bradford”. And reproduce it here: ‘Behold now is the accepted time, behold now is the day of salvation. Wherefore, as the Holy Ghost saith, Today, if ye will hear his voice, harden not your hearts.’
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In the 1800s, the Quaker House was occupied by a lady called Judy White, who was one of Bradford’s most eccentric characters. She was a sizing maker, who would attend Bradford Market with a hat over her night-cap, her husband’s coat over her night-gown (which was a blue-dotted print), a basket on her arm, and a smelly clay pipe stuffed into her mouth!
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Now retrace your steps back to Moorside Road, where one walks to the top to join Stoney Lane, passing on the left the large square house known as Stone Hall, and the jumble of cottages and outhouses which surround it. This is not the original Stone Hall, since it was built in the early 1800s by William Holmes, who had the original demolished in 1802. The original Stone Hall was a low straw thatched building with diamond window panes, and had a parlour floored with red tiles. Our friends the Kitson family (of the Quaker House) lived there, and William Cudworth states: ‘The old building was in the possession of one James Kitson (an Eccleshill celebrity of last century), and passed from him to William Holmes...who was undoubtedly the best known man in Eccleshill.’ How old the original Stone Hall was we simply do not know. One thing we do know: it seems Mr. Holmes liked knocking down old buildings, as Cudworth mentions that there used to be an ancient windmill stood in a field behind the Mechanics Institute and Mr. Holmes had it destroyed when he decided to build a steam flour mill on the same site!
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Across the road one can see the Mechanics Institute (look for the large inscription). This is what was called a ‘Mutual Improvement Society’ formed in 1850 by Isaac Bates and John Boyes, beginning in Chapel Street, where sometime after they were “turned out, the trustees not approving of their new-fangled notions of improvement” (Cudworth), then moving to Belle Vue Buildings. As the Society grew, it became obvious that they really needed their own building, so funds were sought from Eccleshill inhabitants and by 1869 there was enough money available to build and open the institute we see before us. The institute was a kind of school where subjects such as science were taught, and some members went on to be successful teachers. But there was much more to it than that. Over the years the Institute has been used for political meetings, celebrations, popular entertainment such as dances and concerts, and for a long time the building housed the Eccleshill Cinema. This was known as the Picture Palace, opening in 1911, and running throughout the ‘silent’ era. The cinema closed in 1931, after which it became a dance hall.
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From here one begins a stroll along Stoney Lane, generally accepted to be the centre of Eccleshill and, by tradition, named after a rather violent event supposed to have happened here in the medieval period. A travelling monk, or minister of the church on occasion used to preach here; however, it seems he ‘stopped by’ a little too often for Eccleshill folk, and fed up with him bothering them, they stoned him to death! This had the village cast out of the church, and some say that is why for many years Eccleshill only had non-denominational chapels and prayer houses – there was not a church here until St. Luke’s was built. On the left are a row of lovely old cottages, one of which is the Royal Oak public house. The Royal Oak – though mentioned in the 1841 census – is much older, probably dating back to the 1700s, which is when all the cottages were thought to have been built. Though a terrace, they are, in fact, individually built (note the stone windbreak).
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Further on the right, the large building before the Methodist Chapel was once the Eccleshill Co-operative Store (the “Co-op”). There have been three Co-ops in Eccleshill, this one being the largest, built in 1870, and housing three individual shops selling groceries, footwear and animal feeds and corn. There is a very comical story connected to the building; an Eccleshill gentleman recalled: ‘As in most local grocers’ shops, people bought treacle ‘loose’, as they used to say, that is, they brought their own jars and had them filled. At the Co-op the treacle was kept in a barrel upstairs, and the supply ran down to the counter below in a pipe controlled by a valve. One day, when the shop was closed, the valve was not properly turned off and throughout the night treacle ran down on to the counter and all over the floor – even into the entrance. I recall what a horrible mess it was, and I felt very sorry for those who had to clear it up.’ A ‘sticky’ situation indeed!
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Crossing Stoney Lane one can enter an area behind the street which allows a good view of the ornamental frontage of the Wesleyan Sunday School, now a residential building. Built in 1844, it seems rather a strange building as it appears to have been built back-to-front; i.e. both the Wesleyan Church (built 1854/5), and the first Sunday School (the single story 1844 building) of which make up this group of buildings both face the opposite direction! How could this be?  Well, at the time of construction, there was to be a road built between Stoney Lane and Tunwell Street and the Wesleyan Sunday School would face directly onto this road (so facing the right way). But the road was never built, and so the edifice appears to have been built the wrong way round!
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Incidentally, you may remember, when earlier discussing David Hockney, we mentioned how – as a child - he became known for drawing cartoons. Well, it was here where he got into trouble by shocking the priests, when the young artist was caught by them, drawing cartoons of Jesus!
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Retracing one’s steps to Stoney Lane, cross to the junction of Stoney Lane and Victoria Road and see what is locally known as the “Monkey Bridge”. This is an elevated walkway, above what was believed to be the old “lock up” – a place were local villains were incarcerated for the night, perhaps after being found drunk and disorderly, or fighting in the street. One can still see the outline of the doorway and other entrances (long since blocked up) – though we have to be careful, as it also seems that the two square entrances led to public conveniences. It is difficult to know just what’s what! [image: image52.png]


Monkey Bidge is supposed to have got its name when, in the early days of the Labour Party, a rally was held here. A chap from Lancashire stood behind the railings to address the large crowd that had gathered below. Nearby happened to be the local Liberal club, and attracted by the noise one man asked what was going on. Somebody said: ‘It’s them monkeys again, talking Labour.’ And that’s how it became known as the Monkey Bridge!
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Standing on the Monkey Bridge one gets a good view of the old Hutton School. This Central Board School (as it was known) was built on the site of Eccleshill Hall, owned by the Stanhope family, and opened by John Hutton in 1886, after he had bought the land and given it over for the building of a school. The new school housed 250 children, and its first scholars were those transferred from the Undenominational School in Chapel Street. It was officially named Hutton School in 1899 after the benefactor, who sadly, died just a few weeks later. Footnote: one of the strangest subjects taught was ‘sloyd’ which was actually Scandinavian woodcarving! 
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Standing alongside Monkey Bridge we have the White Hart public house. It was built by a Tom Roberts in 1774, though the present building has been completely refronted and does not look that old. Mr. Roberts was the brewer to the Stanhope family of Eccleshill Hall which explains why the pub is situated on this corner. Part of the premises was used as a schoolroom - possibly the earliest place of learning in Eccleshill – by a man called John Blamires who local historian William Cudworth described as an eccentric but worthy man!

Up ahead can be seen the Victoria Hotel – though it is not the original: it has had extensive alterations over the years. It was once a popular venue for auction sales, and would have been constantly full, due to the fact that this area was at one time densely populated. Behind the pub, and standing away from the main road, is a real ‘gem’ of a building, and it is such a shame that it is now in a dilapidated condition. Prospect Chapel is probably the oldest building in this area, and certainly the most historical. When the chapel was erected in 1775 it was only the third Wesleyan Chapel to be built in the Bradford area. It was a very important prayer house, so much so that the great John Wesley, who had begun the Methodist [image: image56.jpg]


movement, came to preach here. In fact, Mr. Wesley took a personal interest in the chapel when a bust-up took place over Wesleyan principles. Trying to gain reconciliation, but having little success, he wrote in his diary: ‘I might as well have talked to as many posts.’  It lasted until 1854/5 when the congregation moved to new premises in Stoney Lane (we have seen these). [image: image57.jpg]


After, it became redundant, then used by an organ builder, and also as a joiners and undertakers premises. Today it just seems unloved and unwanted – cannot someone do something to bring this beautiful building (just look at the windows!) back to life?

[image: image58.jpg]


Returning to the front of the Victoria Hotel, one now starts the descent of The Bank – one of the steepest roads in Bradford! Long before Harrogate Road was opened, the only way out of Bradford in this direction was along Idle Road, Stonehall Road, Stoney Lane, Victoria Road (once known as Town Lane) and down The Bank. Fine going that way – but coming up it? Here, we find in history another famous person – though not for acting, singing, or dancing for that matter!. Much of the property on the right hand side of The Bank was owned by the Greaves family, who were said to have amongst their family a young boy once thought to be the tallest man in the world! It is said he stood 7 feet 6 inches tall! We would never get him through our classroom door!
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Progressing down The Bank one finds Our Lady and St Brendan’s School on the right. We are now close to where we began our trail. It is but a short distance from here to the mounting block in Harrogate Road. There are two more points of interest on our trail; the first being the site of the railway that ran directly above the school (the banking is still there, though houses have been built on it). In The Bank, and also Park Road, one can still see buttresses of the bridges that crossed both roads. The railway was known as the Laisterdyke – Windhill Branch of The Great Northern Railway. Eccleshill Station was a short walk from here, being where Summerbridge Crescent meets Hall Lane. The station was opened in 1872. (Further details of the line are available elsewhere in this book).
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Our final point of interest is a very exciting one: ancient tradition states that, long, long ago, a horde of valuable treasure was buried in an area approximately half way up The Bank! That treasure – thought to be worth millions of pounds – has never been found, and still lies waiting to be discovered by some intrepid treasure hunter. Perhaps it’s time we got out our metal detectors!!!

We hope you have enjoyed your walk through time with us, and would hope you agree that our local history is just as exciting as national history. Forget London, York or Bath. Just take a stroll around Eccleshill and see what we have to offer!

